
8850 SW State Hwy 3, Bremerton, WA 98312 | 360.674.2381 | www.portofbremerton.org 
 
 

 
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

REGULAR BUSINESS MEETING 
 

A G E N D A 
May 23, 2023  Bill Mahan Conference Room 
6:00 PM Port Administration Offices 
 Bremerton Nat’l Airport Terminal Bldg 
 8850 SW State Hwy 3, Bremerton 
 
The Port of Bremerton Board of Commissioners have resumed in-person meetings but are 
maintaining the option for the public to participate remotely as well. The public is invited to view 
and/or participate in the hybrid meeting by attending in person or through one of the following 
options: 

• To stream online only (via BKAT feed, with no interaction possible): 
https://bremerton.vod.castus.tv/vod/?live=ch1&nav=live  

• To join the online Zoom meeting: https://us02web.zoom.us/j/3359030010  
• For audio only; dial 1.253.215.8782; Meeting ID: 335 903 0010  

 

Call to Order  

Pledge of Allegiance 

Approval of Agenda 

Consent Items 

All matters listed under Consent Items have been distributed to each member of the 
Commission for reading and study, are considered to be routine, and will be enacted by one 
motion of the Commission with no separate discussion.  If separate discussion is desired, that 
item may be removed from the Consent Items and placed under Action Items by request. 
 

A. Minutes of the regular business meeting of May 9, 2023. 

B. Payment of checks #901803 and #901804 and #901805 through #901806 and #901807 
through #901808 and #E01475 and #84887 through #84898 and #E01476 through 
#E01484 and #901809 through #901812 from the General Fund for $178,145.06. 

Payment of checks #901813 and #84899 through #84912 and #E01485 through 
#E01494 from the General Fund for $47,139.55. 

Information Items 

1. Collins Historical Aircraft Foundation – Roger Collins 

https://bremerton.vod.castus.tv/vod/?live=ch1&nav=live
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/3359030010


Agenda for May 23, 2025 
Page 2 

** The Commission may add and take action on other items not listed on the Agenda ** 

Citizen Comments: Open to the public for comment. Speakers are asked to keep their comments to less 
than 3 minutes. Please feel free to submit further comments in writing to the Clerk of 
the Board (gingerw@portofbremerton.org). 

Action Items 

1. 2023 Marina Tariff Schedule Update 

2. Change Order #1 for Port Orchard Properties Environmental Remediation Contract with 
Pioneer Technologies Corporation 

3. Marina Security Agreement with Safe Security 

Staff Reports 

Commission Reports / New Business 

Executive Session (if necessary) 

Adjournment 
 
 

Regular business and other meetings that may be attended by members of the Board 
Date Time Meeting 
05/23 6:00 pm  *Commission Regular Business Meeting  
05/30 11:00 am Puget Sound Regional Council (PSRC) General Assembly 
06/06 1:45 pm Kitsap Regional Coordinating Council (KRCC) Executive Board06 
06/07 10:00 am Central Puget Sound Economic Development District (CPSEDD) Board 
06/13 10:00 am *Commission Regular Business Meeting 

 
Meetings are subject to change or cancellation 

*Denotes events in which two (2) or more Commissioners may attend 



8850 SW State Hwy 3, Bremerton, WA 98312 | 360.674.2381 | www.portofbremerton.org 

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
REGULAR BUSINESS MEETING 

M I N U T E S 
May 9, 2023 Bill Mahan Conference Room 
10:00 AM Port Administration Offices 

Bremerton Nat’l Airport Terminal Bldg 
8850 SW State Hwy 3, Bremerton 

Remote Option via Zoom 
Commissioners and Staff Present 

Commissioners 
Axel Strakeljahn 
Gary Anderson 
Cary Bozeman 

Staff Members 
Jim Rothlin 
Arne Bakker 
Jeremiah Wiley 
James Weaver 

James Goodman 
Ginger Waye 
Stephanie Frame 
Anne Montgomery, Atty 

Call to Order  

President Strakeljahn called the meeting to order at 10:00 a.m. and led the Pledge of Allegiance. 

Approval of Agenda 

It was moved by BOZEMAN, seconded by ANDERSON to: 

Approve the Agenda as presented. 

MOTION CARRIES, 3-0 

Consent Items 

A. Minutes of the regular business meeting of April 25, 2023.

B. Payment of checks #901779 through #901785 and #901786 and #901787 and #901788
and #E01453 and #E01454 and #901789 through #901792 and #84857 and #84858
through #84871 and #E01455 through #E01460 and #901793 through #901796 from
the General Fund for $481,433.80.

Payment of checks #901797 through #901800 and #84872 through #84886 and
#E01461 through #E01474 and #901801 and #901802 from the General Fund for
$178,536.04

It was moved by STRAKELJAHN, seconded by BOZEMAN to: 

Approve the Consent Items as presented. 

MOTION CARRIES, 3-0 

Draf
t



Regular Business Meeting Minutes 
May 9, 2023 

Page 2 of 4 

 
Information Items 
 

1. Legislative Update – Desimone Consulting Group (DCG) 

CEO Jim Rothlin introduced Desimone Consulting Group State Lobbyist Rose Feliciano 
and Federal Lobbyist Liz Fortunato. 

Ms. Feliciano reported on the Port’s $1M capital budget appropriation and the $2M 
transportation budget line item under a Climate Commitment Act shorepower provision 
for the Port Orchard Marina (POM) breakwater replacement project. She highlighted the 
importance of having the support of Senator Randall and Representatives Caldier and 
Hutchins in securing these funding opportunities. 

Ms. Fortunato detailed the breakwater federal funding the Port has applied for which 
includes the Rebuilding American Infrastructure with Sustainability and Equity (RAISE) 
grant; the Port Infrastructure Development Program (PIDP) grant; and a PIDP earmark. 
She discussed specifics of each request and the timing for award notifications.  
 

2. Marina Rates and Tariffs – James Weaver, Director of Marine Facilities 

Mr. Weaver provided history on previous tariff updates at Port Orchard and Bremerton 
Marinas and discussed the Port’s strategic goal of determining market-based direction for 
key assets to reduce tax dollar dependency. The following factors were used in determining 
recommended rate/fee changes: gross revenue; revenue sources; location of tenants; 
transient guest moorage data; monthly operating expenses; Puget Sound marina moorage 
rate analysis; and area rent and vacancy rates (for liveaboard fees). The recommended 
marina tariff rate schedule will be presented for adoption at the next regular meeting on 
May 23. New rates would be effective July 1, 2023. 
 

Citizen Comments - None 
 
Action Items 
 

1. Hangar 7 Stormwater Repair Project Change Order #3 
Presented by Arne Bakker, Chief Operations Officer 

Following presentation and after questions were addressed: 

It was moved by ANDERSON, seconded by BOZEMAN to: 

Approve Change Order #3 for the Hangar 7 Stormwater Repair Project in the amount of 
$35,520.10 and authorize the CEO to execute the change order. 

MOTION CARRIES, 3-0 
 

Draf
t



Regular Business Meeting Minutes 
May 9, 2023 

Page 3 of 4 

2. Resolution 2023-02 supporting the Washington State Department of Transportation 
(WSDOT) Airport Aid Application for the National Environmental Policy Act (NEPA) 
Project for Eastside Development. 
Presented by Arne Bakker, Chief Operations Officer 

Following presentation; 

It was moved by BOZEMAN, seconded by ANDERSON to: 

Approve Resolution No. 2023-02 supporting the WSDOT Airport Aid Application for a 
NEPA Project for Eastside Development at Bremerton National Airport. 

MOTION CARRIES, 3-0 
 

Staff Reports 
 
Jim Rothlin, Chief Executive Officer 

• Employee milestones during May: 

o Ken Eisenhardt, Port Maintenance II, reached his 8th year working at the Port. 

o Kayle Lenz, Port Maintenance II, celebrates his 2-yr anniversary at the marinas. 

o Connie Daggett, Staff Accountant handling payroll and assisting with accounts 
payable, completes her first year on May 16. 

o Jenifer Zuweni, Staff Accountant handling accounts receivable, also completes her 
first year on May 16. 

• Bremerton National Airport (BNA) was chosen as a film production site; the screenplay 
was described along with the reasons for using BNA. 

• Recently received good publicity on the cruise ships docking at Bremerton Marina and the 
upcoming Wings of Washington Airshow scheduled at BNA on August 19 and 20. 

 
Commission Reports / New Business 
 
Commissioner Anderson 

• Attended the Kitsap Regional Coordinating Council (KRCC) meeting. 

Commissioner Strakeljahn 
• Attended the following: 

o Peninsula Home & Garden Show and was a judge for the Lego building contest. 
o KRCC board meeting 

o Central Kitsap Food Bank gala 

• America’s Competitiveness Exchange (ACE) delegation will be visiting the Port on 
Thursday, May 18.  

Executive Session - None 
 

Draf
t



Regular Business Meeting Minutes 
May 9, 2023 

Page 4 of 4 

Adjournment 
 

There being no further business before the Board, the meeting was adjourned at 11:35 a.m. 
 

Submitted,      Approved, 
 
 
 
Jim Rothlin      Cary Bozeman 
Chief Executive Officer    Commission Secretary 
May 18, 2023      May 23, 2023 
 

Draf
t



 
AGENDA SUMMARY 

 

Agenda Item No: Action Item #1 

Subject: 2023 Proposed Marina Tariff Schedule Update 

Exhibits: Bremerton and Port Orchard Marina Proposed 2023 Tariff Update 

Prepared By: James Weaver, Director of Marine Facilities 

Meeting Date: May 23, 2023  

 
Summary: 
On May 9, the Port conducted a commissioner work-study and information item on the 
proposed Port Orchard and Bremerton Marina 2023 tariff updates.  The Marina moorage 
rates last increased in 2021.  The regular review of marina moorage rates is consistent with 
Port of Bremerton Strategic Plan, Goal #3 “Determine market-based direction for key 
assets to reduce tax dollar dependency”. 

The demand for marina moorage has increased each year and the vacancy rates at both 
marinas have dropped with waitlists for most slip sizes.  The cost of operations, repairs, and 
materials have steadily increased and the previous marina rates have not accommodated 
those changes.  The recent improvements including new parking, Wi-Fi, recycling program, 
and other amenities have also had financial impacts. 

The proposal for 2023 marina rates incorporates a modest increase to moorage at both 
marinas.  The proposed marina fee 2023 update would be consistent with other local 
marinas and remain very competitive within Puget Sound.  The proposed marina tariff 2023 
update, upon approval, would be scheduled for a July 1, 2023, implementation.   

Fiscal Impact: 
Approval of the 2023 Proposed Marina Tariff Schedule Update would be estimated to reduce 
the tax dependency of the Port assets by approximately $100,000 for each marina. 

Recommendation: 
Staff recommends the approval of the 2023 tariff schedule updates for the Bremerton and 
Port Orchard marinas. 

Motion for Consideration: 
Move to approve the 2023 Marina Tariff Update for the Port Orchard and 
Bremerton Marinas with an effective date of July 1, 2023.  

 



1 
 

               
   PORT ORCHARD MARINA  
                           2023 TARIFF SCHEDULE  
                               (Effective July 01, 2023) 
 

 
 

PERMANENT MOORAGE 
Monthly Moorage Rates*** (plus applicable taxes*): 
  
OPEN  $/month ($/ft/month)   COVERED  $/month ($/ft/month) 

20’  $128.16  ($6.96)  28’      $250.62  ($8.95) 
24’  $167.03  ($6.96)  32’      $322.82  ($10.09) 
28’  $215.91  ($7.71)  36’      $410.63  ($11.41) 
32’  $267.41  ($8.36)   42’      $518.51  ($12.35) 
36’  $307.89  ($8.55)  52’      $715.96  ($13.77) 
40’  $350.29  ($8.76)   
42’  $377.15  ($8.98)   
50’  $467.75  ($9.35)   
60’  $562.85  ($9.38)   
>60’         $11.00 per foot   

OTHER: Side Tie:  $11.00 per foot 
 
 

 
OTHER MOORAGE RELATED CHARGES 
 
 Deposits 
 
 Security Deposit:       Equal to one month’s moorage+$100.00 
 Live Aboard Setup Fee:       $150.00 
 Wait List Deposit:       $100.00 per list  
 
 
 Miscellaneous: 
  
 Wait List Fee (annual):       $25.00  
 Live Aboard Monthly Fee:        $200.00/boat/month – plus applicable taxes****  

Live Aboard Background Check:       Fee determined & collected by outside agency 
 Environmental Fee:       $5.00 per month 

Dinghy Storage:        $10.00 per month   
 Slip Change Request List:      $25.00 per move 
 Metered Electric:       $0.14 per kwh 
 Parking Pass Fee (lost/passes not returned):    $25.00 
 Gate Card/Fob Fee (lost/not returned):      $10.00 each fob/card 

Vessel Spill/Sinking Response Fee     $100.00 per instance + Man hours @ $ 100 per 
Vessel Chaining Reinstatement Fee:     $200.00 

 Illegal Dumping Fee       $100.00 per instance 
  
 
 
PARKING 
  
 Water Street:        $10.00 per day (1st - 24 hours free) 
 Other Parking         $1.00 per hour 

 
 
 



2 
 

 
                           
                PORT ORCHARD MARINA  
                 2021 TARIFF SCHEDULE  

(Effective July 01, 2023) 
                
 
GUEST MOORAGE 
(Stays 30 days or greater are subject to Leasehold Excise Tax*) 
 
Peak Season (May 1 – September 30) 
 Finger Slips & Side-ties:  (A&B Dock, Public Dock)    $50.00 per night + $1.25 per ft over 40 ft 
    (May be used for 14 days in a 30 day period) 
  
 South Basin Breakwater:      $1.25/ft boat length  
   (No Minimum Charge) 
  
 Transition Dock:       $25.00 per night + $1.25 per ft over 20 ft 
             
Off Season (October 1 – April 30) 
 Finger Slips:        $40.00 per night + $1.00 per ft over 40 ft 
   (May only use finger slips for 14 days in a 30 day period)  
  
 East Breakwater & Transition Dock:     $20.00 per night + $1.00 per ft over 20 ft 
   (May only use east breakwater & transition dock for 14 days in a 30 day period) 
  
 North & Outside Breakwater:      $1.00/ft boat length  
   (No Minimum charge)  
 
GUEST ELECTRICITY  
 
 $5.00 per night  
 
 
OTHER GUEST MOORAGE FEES   
 
 Reservation Fee:       $5.00 per boat (paid in advance/non-refundable) 
 Guest Moorage Late Fee:      $5.00 per day (over 24 hours) 
          (maximum $ 40.00 per month) 
 
 
COMMERCIAL VESSEL/ CRUISE SHIP / AIRCRAFT OPERATIONS  
 
 $100.00 per event (Per visit or via short term use agreement) 
 

MISCELLANEOUS FEES 
  
 Fax Service:        $1.00 per page 
 Copies:         $0.15 per page        
 Service charge**:       $100.00 per man hour + material cost 
   
 
*  Plus 12.84% State Leasehold Tax (or applicable property tax if less than leasehold tax) 
**  Service Charges for dewatering, securing, towing, repairing boats and Marina damage because of lack of response,  
     carelessness, neglect, etc. of tenant or visitor. 
*** Marina Rates may be adjusted annually each January 1 to reflect inflation as measured by the Bureau of Labor Statistics CPI-U published 

rates for the Seattle-Tacoma-Bellevue area. 
**** Total liveaboards may be reduced to 20 per marina depending upon parking and resource availability. 
 
Note:   Late fees on past due accounts will be applied at the rate of 1.5% per month with a minimum of $40.00.    
           



BREMERTON MARINA 
2023 TARIFF SCHEDULE  

(Effective July 1, 2023) 
 

1 
 

 
PERMANENT MOORAGE 
Base Moorage Rate*** (plus applicable taxes*): 
  
MONTHLY MOORAGE                                                                                                    
Slip/Berth Length            $/Month                         Per Ft.                                              

36’ $352.92 $9.80 
38’ $378.84 $9.97 
40’ $405.49 $10.14 
42’ $432.88 $10.31 
44’ $461.00 $10.48 
46’ $489.84 $10.65 
48’ $519.43 $10.82 
50’ $549.75 $10.99 
52’ $580.78 $11.17 
54’ $612.56 $11.34 
56’ $645.07 $11.52 
58’ $678.30 $11.69 
60’ $712.28 $11.87 

Over 60’ $12.00/ft./month  
 
 
OTHER MOORAGE RELATED CHARGES 
 
Deposits: 
 

 Security Deposit:      Equal to one month’s moorage+$100.00 
 Live Aboard Setup Fee:      $150.00 
 Wait List Deposit:       $100.00 

 
Miscellaneous: 
 
 Wait List Fee (annual):       $25.00 
 Live Aboard Background Check:     Fee determined & collected by outside agency 

 Live Aboard Fee :      $200.00/boat/month – plus applicable taxes**** 
 Environmental Fee:      $5.00 per month 
 Dinghy Storage:       $5.00 per month 

 Slip Change Request List:     $25.00 per move 
 Parking Pass Fee (lost/passes not returned):   $55.00 

 Gate Card/Fob Fee (lost/not returned):     $10.00 each fob/card 
Vessel Spill/Sinking Response Fee    $100.00 per instance + Man hours @ $ 100 per 
Vessel Chaining Reinstatement Fee:    $200.00 

 Illegal Dumping Fee      $100.00 per instance 
 
 

Metered Electric:    $14.00 per month for the first 100KW 
 and $0.14 cents/kw over 100 KW 

Flat Rate Electric (per month): 
 
  24’ $16.73   48’ $26.48 
  36’ $21.61    50’ $27.30 
  42’ $24.05   56’ $29.74 
  44’ $25.68   60’ $31.36 
  46’ $26.48   >60’ $39.49 
   
  



BREMERTON MARINA 
2023 TARIFF SCHEDULE  

(Effective July 1, 2023) 
 

2 
 

 
GUEST MOORAGE   
(Stays 30 Days or Greater are Subject to Leasehold Excise Tax*) 
 
Peak Season (May 1 – September 30) 
 Finger Slips & Side-ties:  (A&B Dock, Public Dock)   $50.00 per night + $1.25 per ft over 40 ft 
    (May be used for 14 days in a 30 day period) 
  
 South Basin Breakwater:     $1.25/ft boat length  
   (No Minimum Charge) 
  
 Transition Dock:      $25.00 per night + $1.25 per ft over 20 ft 
   (May only be used for 14 days in a 30 day period)  
 
Off Season (October 1 – April 30) 
 Finger Slips & Side-ties:  (A&B Dock, Public Dock)   $40.00 per night + $1.00 per ft over 40 ft 
    (May be used for 14 days in a 30 day period) 
  
 South Basin Breakwater:     $1.00/ft boat length  
   (No Minimum Charge) 
  
 Transition Dock:      $20.00 per night + $1.00 per ft over 20 ft 
 
GUEST ELECTRICITY   
  
 30 amp & 50amp:        $5.00 per night   

 
OTHER GUEST MOORAGE FEES 
 
 Reservation Fee:      $5.00 per boat (paid in advance/non-refundable) 
 Guest Moorage Late Fee:     $5.00 per day (over 24 hours) 
         (maximum of $40 per month) 
 
COMMERCIAL VESSEL / CRUISE SHIP / AIRCRAFT OPERATIONS   
 
 $100.00 per event (Per visit or via short term use agreement) 
 
MISCELLANEOUS FEES 
 
 Fax Service:        $1.00 per page 
 Copies:        $0.15 per page 
 Service Charge**:      $50.00 per man hour + material costs 
  
 
 
*  Plus 12.84% State Leasehold Tax (or applicable property tax if less than leasehold tax) 
**  Service Charges for dewatering, securing, towing, repairing boats and Marina damage because of lack of response,  
     carelessness, neglect, etc. of tenant or visitor. 
*** Marina Rates may be adjusted annually each January 1 to reflect inflation as measured by the Bureau of Labor Statistics CPI-

U published rates for the Seattle-Tacoma-Bellevue area. 
**** Total liveaboards may be reduced to 20 per marina depending upon parking and resource availability. 
 

Note:   Late fees on past due accounts will be applied at the rate of 1 ½ % per month with a minimum of $40.00.           



\\pobfile-21\Airport_Data\Public_Forms\Agenda Materials\2023-05-23\Pioneer Technologies CO1\AGENDA SUMMARY-Action Item  -Pioneer Change Order No 1.docx 

 
AGENDA SUMMARY 

 

Agenda Item No: Action Item #2  

Subject: Pioneer Technologies Corporation Change Order #1  

Exhibits: Change Order #1 – Pioneer Technologies Corporation 

Prepared By: James Weaver, Director of Marine Facilities 

Meeting Date: May 23, 2023 

 
Summary: 
In spring of 2023, the Port of Bremerton was awarded a WA Department of Ecology grant for 
$130,000 to prepare an environmental remediation soils feasibility study for the properties 
located at 521 and 525 Bay Street, Port Orchard, Washington.  

The original Pioneer contract scope of work included multiple components related to site 
assessment, remediation feasibility analysis, implementation of the soil remediation plan, 
soils testing, reporting to State and Federal agencies all to support a successful project to meet 
all regulatory requirements. As noted in prior approvals, the time and materials contract 
administration was to be phased, with phase progress based upon investigation results, 
alternative solution costing, and also may be based upon grant approvals. 

This approval is for a zero-cost change order to the existing Pioneer Technologies Corporation 
contract to complete the tasks identified within the grant scope for environmental 
remediation of the 521 and 525 Bay Street properties which contained former petroleum tanks 
and contaminated soils on the property. 

 
Fiscal Impact: 
The change order is for a maximum amount of $ 130,000.00 in services to be conducted by 
December 31, 2023.   The Grant reimbursement is for a total amount of $130,00.00 for work 
conducted prior to December 31, 2023.   The net fiscal impact to the Port for the change order 
would be zero.    

 
Strategic Purpose: 
This action conforms with the Port’s strategic plan in Goal 7. Continue to improve the Port’s 
environmental performance and minimize its ecological footprint. 
 
Recommendation: 
Port staff recommends the approval of change order #1 to the Pioneer Technologies contract. 
 
Motion for Consideration: 
Move to approve Change Order #1 to the Port Orchard Properties environmental 
remediation contract with Pioneer Technologies. 



 
 

PORT OF BREMERTON 
AMENDMENT NO. 1 

 
 
Agreement Title:  Amendment No. 1: Phase 2 to the contract for Environmental Soils Remediation for 
521 and 525 Bay Street, Port Orchard, WA dated August 8, 2022. 
  Project No.  03-22-30007-C 

Date: 5/23/2023 
To:  Pioneer Technologies Inc.  
  
You are hereby directed to make the changes listed below in the subject contract.  All other provisions of the 
contract remain in full force and effect.  This Amendment represents a full and final resolution of these items; 
all costs and time effects are resolved. 
 
Nature of Amendment 
 
Amendment 1 increases the value of the contract limit by $130,000.00 for phase 2 of the contract which 
inlcudes the evaluation of newly collected site data, geotechnical evaluations, the creating of the interim action 
work plan, the creation of engineering design report, the creation of interim action plans and specs, and project 
management.   
 
 
Justification of Amendment 
 
The Port of Bremerton was awarded $130,000.00 from the Washington State Department of Commerce Local 
Government Division Brownfields Revolving Loan Fund Program to fund phase 2 of the project. Pioneer 
Technologies Inc. was awarded the contract for Environmental Soils Remediation for 521 and 525 Bay Street 
thrtough a competitive Request for Qualifications process for professional services for an initial phase 1 with 
options to exercise amendments for additional phases. Their proposal for phase 2 work dated March 16, 2023 
was included as part of the grant application and is an exhibit to this amendment. 
  
 
 
The changes result in the following adjustment of the Contract Price and Time: 
 
Contract Value Prior to this Amendment $ 125,000.00  

Net (increase) (decrease) Resulting from this Amendment $ 130,000.00 

Current Contract Price Including this Amendment $ 255,000.00 

 

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------ 

Date of Completion Prior to this Amendment December 31, 2023 

Net (increase) Resulting from this Amendment 0 

Current Contract Time Including this Amendment December 31, 2023 

 

(continued on next page) 

 

 



------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

The above Amendment The above Amendment The above Amendment
is recommended is accepted is approved

Engineer: Contractor: Owner:

Pioneer Technologies, Inc. Port of Bremerton

By: By: By:

Date: Date: Date:May 9, 2023

Chris Waldron

ontractor:
Digitally signed by Chris Waldron 
DN: cn=Chris Waldron, 
o=PIONEER Technologies 
Corporation, ou, 
email=waldronc@uspioneer.com
, c=US 
Date: 2023.05.09 11:57:08 -07'00'







Pr
in

.
Sr

.
Pr

oj
.

St
af

f
AA

O
D

C
s

$1
98

 
$1

75
 

$1
35

 
$1

18
 

$8
0 

La
bo

r
O

D
C

s
To

ta
l

Ev
al

ua
te

 a
nd

 
su

m
m

ar
iz

e 
re

ce
nt

 
in

ve
st

ig
at

io
n 

re
su

lts
 

Ev
al

ua
te

 N
ov

em
be

r 2
02

2 
an

d 
Fe

br
ua

ry
 2

02
3 

in
ve

st
ig

at
io

n 
re

su
lts

, 
pr

ep
ar

e 
su

m
m

ar
y 

fig
ur

e 
of

 a
ll 

re
le

va
nt

 T
PH

-G
 s

oi
l a

nd
 g

ro
un

dw
at

er
 

re
su

lts
, a

nd
 p

re
pa

re
 ta

bl
e 

of
 a

ll 
TP

H
-G

 a
nd

 B
TE

X 
so

il 
an

d 
gr

ou
nd

w
at

er
 re

su
lts

 to
 d

at
e.

It 
is

 a
ss

um
ed

 th
e 

le
ve

l o
f e

ffo
rt 

in
cl

ud
ed

 in
 th

is
 ta

bl
e 

w
ill 

be
 s

uf
fic

ie
nt

 to
 c

om
pl

et
e 

th
is

 s
ub

ta
sk

.

2 
2 

24
 

$3
,5

78
$0

$3
,5

78
$3

,5
78

Pr
e-

m
ob

iliz
at

io
n 

ta
sk

s 
fo

r f
ie

ld
 a

ct
iv

iti
es

C
om

pl
et

e 
al

l p
re

-m
ob

iliz
at

io
n 

pr
ep

ar
at

io
n 

an
d 

co
or

di
na

tio
n 

ac
tiv

iti
es

 
ne

ed
ed

 to
 c

om
pl

et
e 

dr
illi

ng
-re

la
te

d 
ac

tiv
iti

es
 s

uc
ce

ss
fu

lly
 a

nd
 s

af
el

y 
in

 a
cc

or
da

nc
e 

w
ith

 th
e 

cu
rre

nt
 H

AS
P.

  

It 
is

 a
ss

um
ed

 th
at

 P
IO

N
EE

R
's

 s
ub

ta
sk

s 
w

ill 
in

cl
ud

e 
(1

) p
re

pa
rin

g 
a 

tra
ffi

c 
co

nt
ro

l p
la

n,
 (2

) c
oo

rd
in

at
in

g 
w

ith
 

eq
ui

pm
en

t s
up

pl
ie

rs
 to

 o
bt

ai
n 

ne
ce

ss
ar

y 
eq

ui
pm

en
t a

nd
 s

up
pl

ie
s,

 (3
) c

oo
rd

in
at

in
g 

ac
ce

ss
, (

4)
 c

on
du

ct
in

g 
a 

pr
oj

ec
t 

sa
fe

ty
 a

na
ly

si
s,

 a
nd

 (5
) c

om
pl

et
in

g 
re

qu
ire

d 
co

or
di

na
tio

n 
an

d 
pa

pe
rw

or
k 

re
qu

ire
d 

by
 th

e 
H

AS
P.

2 
10

 
2 

$5
00

$2
,3

82
$5

40
$2

,9
22

$2
,9

22

C
om

pl
et

e 
ge

ot
ec

hn
ic

al
 

in
ve

st
ig

at
io

n 
ac

tiv
iti

es
Ad

va
nc

e 
on

e 
so

il 
bo

rin
g 

an
d 

co
lle

ct
 g

eo
te

ch
ni

ca
l d

at
a 

to
 s

up
po

rt 
th

e 
de

si
gn

 o
f I

A 
ex

ca
va

tio
n 

sh
or

in
g 

to
 p

ro
te

ct
 th

e 
st

at
e 

hi
gh

w
ay

 (a
nd

 
ex

is
tin

g 
bu

ild
in

g 
if 

ne
ce

ss
ar

y)
 a

nd
 d

ew
at

er
in

g.

Se
e 

at
ta

ch
ed

 2
/2

5/
23

 p
ro

po
sa

l f
ro

m
 M

ud
 B

ay
 G

eo
te

ch
ni

ca
l S

er
vi

ce
s.

 N
ot

e 
(1

) e
st

im
at

ed
 c

os
ts

 a
re

 fo
r t

he
 R

ev
ie

w
 o

f 
Av

ai
la

bl
e 

Si
te

 In
fo

rm
at

io
n,

 S
ite

 R
ec

on
na

is
sa

nc
e 

an
d 

Fi
el

d 
Ex

pl
or

at
io

n,
 D

ril
lin

g 
C

on
tra

ct
or

 E
st

im
at

e 
w

or
k 

ite
m

s 
in

 th
e 

M
ud

 B
ay

 G
eo

te
ch

ni
ca

l S
er

vi
ce

s 
pr

op
os

al
, a

nd
 (2

) p
riv

at
e 

an
d 

pu
bl

ic
 u

til
ity

 lo
ca

te
s 

fo
r t

he
 p

ro
po

se
d 

ge
ot

ec
hn

ic
al

 
bo

rin
g 

w
er

e 
co

m
pl

et
ed

 in
 F

eb
ru

ar
y 

20
23

.

2 
$4

,5
60

$3
50

$4
,9

25
$5

,2
75

$5
,2

75

O
bt

ai
n 

tid
al

 fl
uc

tu
at

io
n 

an
d 

gr
ou

nd
w

at
er

 fl
ow

 
da

ta

O
bt

ai
n 

(1
) 7

2 
ho

ur
s 

of
 ti

da
l f

lu
ct

ua
tio

n 
an

d 
co

nd
uc

tiv
ity

 d
at

a 
in

 th
e 

on
-

pr
op

er
ty

 M
W

, a
nd

 (2
) s

ta
tic

 w
at

er
 le

ve
ls

 in
 th

e 
on

-p
ro

pe
rty

 M
W

 a
nd

 
th

e 
tw

o 
or

 m
or

e 
of

f-p
ro

pe
rty

 M
W

s 
to

 s
up

po
rt 

th
e 

IA
 d

es
ig

n 
(if

 
po

ss
ib

le
).

It 
is

 a
ss

um
ed

 (1
) t

w
o 

tri
ps

 b
y 

on
e 

PI
O

N
EE

R
 s

ta
ff 

w
ill 

be
 n

ec
es

sa
ry

 to
 p

la
ce

 a
nd

 re
tri

ev
e 

th
e 

tra
ns

du
ce

r, 
(2

) u
p 

to
 tw

o 
ad

di
tio

na
l P

IO
N

EE
R

 s
ta

ff 
w

ill 
be

 n
ec

es
sa

ry
 to

 im
pl

em
en

t t
he

 tr
af

fic
 c

on
tro

l p
la

n 
w

he
n 

co
lle

ct
in

g 
st

at
ic

 w
at

er
 le

ve
ls

 fo
r 

th
e 

M
W

 w
ith

in
 th

e 
st

at
e 

hi
gh

w
ay

, a
nd

 (3
) O

D
C

s 
fo

r a
 A

qu
aT

ro
ll 

20
0 

tra
ns

du
ce

r (
or

 e
qu

iv
al

en
t) 

eq
ui

pp
ed

 w
ith

 a
 

co
nd

uc
tiv

ity
 s

en
so

r a
nd

 d
at

a 
lo

gg
er

, t
ra

ffi
c 

co
nt

ro
l s

up
pl

ie
s,

 w
at

er
 le

ve
l m

et
er

, a
nd

 P
IO

N
EE

R
 tr

av
el

 w
ill 

be
 u

p 
to

 
$1

,5
00

.

2 
10

 
4 

4 
$1

,5
00

$3
,1

58
$1

,6
20

$4
,7

78
$4

,7
78

C
ha

ra
ct

er
iz

e 
an

d 
di

sp
os

e 
of

 ID
W

 
ge

ne
ra

te
d 

to
 d

at
e

C
ha

ra
ct

er
iz

e 
an

d 
di

sp
os

e 
of

 ID
W

 (e
.g

., 
so

il 
cu

tti
ng

s,
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

w
at

er
, p

ur
ge

 w
at

er
, a

nd
 d

ec
on

ta
m

in
at

io
n 

w
at

er
) i

n 
ac

co
rd

an
ce

 w
ith

 
st

at
e 

an
d 

fe
de

ra
l r

eg
ul

at
io

ns
.

It 
is

 a
ss

um
ed

 (1
) a

ll 
ID

W
 g

en
er

at
ed

 to
 d

at
e 

w
ill 

be
 c

ha
ra

ct
er

iz
ed

 a
nd

 d
is

po
se

d 
of

, (
2)

 w
as

te
 c

ha
ra

ct
er

iz
at

io
n 

sa
m

pl
in

g 
an

d 
an

al
ys

is
 w

ill 
be

 c
on

du
ct

ed
 d

ur
in

g 
th

e 
af

or
em

en
tio

ne
d 

fie
ld

 a
ct

iv
ity

 (i
f n

ec
es

sa
ry

), 
(3

) a
ll 

w
as

te
 w

ill 
be

 
ch

ar
ac

te
riz

ed
 a

s 
no

n-
ha

za
rd

ou
s,

 a
nd

 (4
) l

ab
or

at
or

y 
an

d 
w

as
te

 d
is

po
sa

l O
D

C
s 

w
ill 

be
 u

p 
to

 $
3,

00
0.

 
4 

$3
,0

00
$7

00
$3

,2
40

$3
,9

40
$3

,9
40

Id
en

tif
y 

so
il 

an
d 

U
ST

 
di

sp
os

al
 o

pt
io

ns
Id

en
tif

y 
op

tio
ns

 a
nd

 a
ss

oc
ia

te
d 

pr
of

ilin
g 

re
qu

ire
m

en
ts

, f
ac

ilit
y 

re
st

ric
tio

ns
, a

nd
 c

os
ts

 fo
r d

is
po

si
ng

 o
f e

xc
av

at
ed

 s
oi

l a
nd

 U
ST

s 
ge

ne
ra

te
d 

du
rin

g 
th

e 
IA

. 

It 
is

 a
ss

um
ed

 th
e 

le
ve

l o
f e

ffo
rt 

in
cl

ud
ed

 in
 th

is
 ta

bl
e 

w
ill 

be
 s

uf
fic

ie
nt

 to
 c

om
pl

et
e 

th
is

 s
ub

ta
sk

.
2 

4 
30

 
$4

,6
36

$0
$4

,6
36

$4
,6

36

Id
en

tif
y 

AR
AR

s 
an

d 
re

qu
ire

d 
pe

rm
its

Id
en

tif
y 

AR
AR

s,
 p

re
pa

re
 A

R
AR

 s
um

m
ar

y 
ta

bl
e,

 id
en

tif
y 

ap
pl

ic
ab

le
 

lo
ca

l, 
st

at
e,

 a
nd

 fe
de

ra
l p

er
m

its
, a

nd
 s

um
m

ar
iz

e 
ap

pl
ic

ab
le

 p
er

m
it 

re
qu

ire
m

en
ts

.

It 
is

 a
ss

um
ed

 th
e 

le
ve

l o
f e

ffo
rt 

in
cl

ud
ed

 in
 th

is
 ta

bl
e 

w
ill 

be
 s

uf
fic

ie
nt

 to
 c

om
pl

et
e 

th
is

 s
ub

ta
sk

.
8 

40
 

$6
,3

04
$0

$6
,3

04
$6

,3
04

O
bt

ai
n 

ut
ilit

y 
de

ta
ils

C
on

ta
ct

 u
til

ity
 c

om
pa

ni
es

 a
nd

 o
bt

ai
n 

ut
ilit

y 
de

ta
ils

 fo
r u

til
iti

es
 th

at
 

co
ul

d 
be

 a
ffe

ct
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

IA
 e

xc
av

at
io

n(
s)

 to
 d

et
er

m
in

e 
re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
 

fo
r d

ec
om

m
is

si
on

in
g 

an
d 

re
pl

ac
in

g 
af

fe
ct

ed
 u

til
iti

es
.

It 
is

 a
ss

um
ed

 th
e 

le
ve

l o
f e

ffo
rt 

in
cl

ud
ed

 in
 th

is
 ta

bl
e 

w
ill 

be
 s

uf
fic

ie
nt

 to
 c

om
pl

et
e 

th
is

 s
ub

ta
sk

.
2 

4 
30

 
$4

,6
36

$0
$4

,6
36

$4
,6

36

G
eo

te
ch

ni
ca

l d
es

ig
n 

an
d 

pl
an

s/
sp

ec
s 

su
pp

or
t

Pr
ov

id
e 

de
si

gn
 a

nd
 p

la
ns

/s
pe

cs
 s

up
po

rt 
fo

r e
xc

av
at

io
n 

sh
or

in
g,

 
de

w
at

er
in

g,
 a

nd
 c

om
pa

ct
io

n.
 

Se
e 

at
ta

ch
ed

 2
/2

5/
23

 p
ro

po
sa

l f
ro

m
 M

ud
 B

ay
 G

eo
te

ch
ni

ca
l S

er
vi

ce
s.

 N
ot

e 
es

tim
at

ed
 c

os
ts

 a
re

 fo
r t

he
 E

ng
in

ee
rin

g 
An

al
ys

is
, S

tru
ct

ur
al

 E
ng

in
ee

rin
g,

 a
nd

 D
ra

fti
ng

 a
nd

 R
ep

or
t P

re
pa

ra
tio

n 
w

or
k 

ite
m

s 
in

 th
e 

M
ud

 B
ay

 G
eo

te
ch

ni
ca

l 
Se

rv
ic

es
 p

ro
po

sa
l.

2 
$1

0,
64

0
$3

96
$1

1,
49

1
$1

1,
88

7
$1

1,
88

7

Id
en

tif
y 

de
w

at
er

in
g 

ap
pr

oa
ch

Id
en

tif
y 

pr
ef

er
re

d 
de

w
at

er
in

g 
ap

pr
oa

ch
 a

nd
 e

st
im

at
e 

a 
ra

ng
e 

of
 

w
at

er
 v

ol
um

es
 th

at
 m

ay
 b

e 
ge

ne
ra

te
d.

It 
is

 a
ss

um
ed

 th
e 

le
ve

l o
f e

ffo
rt 

in
cl

ud
ed

 in
 th

is
 ta

bl
e 

w
ill 

be
 s

uf
fic

ie
nt

 to
 c

om
pl

et
e 

th
is

 s
ub

ta
sk

. 
2 

24
 

$4
,5

96
$0

$4
,5

96
$4

,5
96

Pr
ep

ar
e 

ke
y 

su
b-

pl
an

 
co

m
po

ne
nt

s 
fo

r I
AW

P 
Pr

ep
ar

e 
dr

af
t v

er
si

on
s 

of
 th

e 
su

b-
pl

an
 c

om
po

ne
nt

s 
(i.

e.
, c

om
pl

ia
nc

e 
m

on
ito

rin
g 

pl
an

, S
AP

, Q
AP

P,
 a

nd
 H

AS
P)

 th
at

 w
ill 

be
 in

cl
ud

ed
 in

 th
e 

IA
W

P.

It 
is

 a
ss

um
ed

 th
e 

le
ve

l o
f e

ffo
rt 

in
cl

ud
ed

 in
 th

is
 ta

bl
e 

w
ill 

be
 s

uf
fic

ie
nt

 to
 c

om
pl

et
e 

th
is

 s
ub

ta
sk

. 
4 

8 
80

 
$1

1,
63

2
$0

$1
1,

63
2

$1
1,

63
2

Pr
ep

ar
e 

in
te

rn
al

 d
ra

ft 
IA

W
P 

(in
cl

ud
in

g 
ED

R
 

an
d 

pl
an

s/
sp

ec
s 

co
m

po
ne

nt
s)

Pr
ep

ar
e 

a 
st

re
am

lin
ed

 IA
W

P 
fo

r P
or

t r
ev

ie
w

 th
at

 s
at

is
fie

s 
IA

W
P 

re
qu

ire
m

en
ts

 in
 W

AC
 1

73
-3

40
-4

30
(7

), 
ED

R
 re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
 in

 W
AC

 
17

3-
34

0-
40

0(
4)

(a
), 

an
d 

pl
an

s/
sp

ec
s 

re
qu

ire
m

en
ts

 in
 W

AC
 1

73
-3

40
-

40
0(

4)
(b

).

It 
is

 a
ss

um
ed

 (1
) t

he
 E

D
R

 a
nd

 p
la

ns
/s

pe
cs

 w
ill 

be
 in

co
rp

or
at

ed
 in

to
 th

e 
IA

W
P 

as
 a

llo
w

ed
 b

y 
W

AC
 1

73
-3

40
-4

00
(4

) 
gi

ve
n 

th
e 

lim
ite

d 
IA

 s
co

pe
, (

2)
 th

e 
re

qu
ire

d 
IA

W
P,

 E
D

R
, a

nd
 p

la
ns

/s
pe

cs
 c

om
po

ne
nt

s 
w

ill 
be

 s
tre

am
lin

ed
 to

 th
e 

ex
te

nt
 p

ra
ct

ic
ab

le
, (

3)
 th

e 
IA

W
P 

w
ill 

in
cl

ud
e 

up
 to

 4
 fi

gu
re

s/
pl

an
 s

he
et

s,
 (4

) t
he

 IA
W

P 
w

ill 
be

 d
is

tri
bu

te
d 

in
 e

le
ct

ro
ni

c 
fo

rm
at

 o
nl

y,
 a

nd
 (5

) t
he

 a
ss

um
ed

 le
ve

l o
f e

ffo
rt 

in
cl

ud
ed

 in
 th

is
 ta

bl
e 

w
ill 

be
 s

uf
fic

ie
nt

 to
 c

om
pl

et
e 

th
is

 s
ub

ta
sk

. 
80

16
20

$2
1,

00
0

$0
$2

1,
00

0
$2

1,
00

0

Pr
ep

ar
e 

ag
en

cy
 re

vi
ew

 
dr

af
t I

AW
P

R
ev

is
e 

th
e 

IA
W

P 
as

 n
ec

es
sa

ry
 b

as
ed

 o
n 

Po
rt 

re
vi

ew
 c

om
m

en
ts

.
It 

is
 a

ss
um

ed
 (1

) t
he

re
 w

ill 
be

 o
ne

 P
or

t r
ev

ie
w

 c
yc

le
, (

2)
 th

er
e 

w
ill 

be
 li

ttl
e 

to
 n

o 
co

m
m

en
ts

 d
ur

in
g 

th
e 

Po
rt 

re
vi

ew
 

cy
cl

e,
 (3

) l
itt

le
 to

 n
o 

re
vi

si
on

s 
w

ill 
be

 n
ec

es
sa

ry
, a

nd
 (4

) t
he

 w
or

k 
pl

an
 w

ill 
be

 d
is

tri
bu

te
d 

el
ec

tro
ni

ca
lly

. 
8

4
4

$2
,7

56
$0

$2
,7

56
$2

,7
56

Pr
ep

ar
e 

pu
bl

ic
 re

vi
ew

 
dr

af
t I

AW
P

R
ev

is
e 

th
e 

IA
W

P 
as

 n
ec

es
sa

ry
 b

as
ed

 o
n 

Ec
ol

og
y 

re
vi

ew
 c

om
m

en
ts

.
It 

is
 a

ss
um

ed
 (1

) t
he

re
 w

ill 
be

 tw
o 

Ec
ol

og
y 

re
vi

ew
 c

yc
le

s,
 (2

) t
he

 n
um

be
r a

nd
 e

xt
en

t o
f E

co
lo

gy
 c

om
m

en
ts

 d
ur

in
g 

th
e 

fir
st

 re
vi

ew
 c

yc
le

 m
ay

 b
e 

su
bs

ta
nt

ia
l, 

(3
) t

he
re

 w
ill 

be
 li

ttl
e 

to
 n

o 
co

m
m

en
ts

 d
ur

in
g 

th
e 

se
co

nd
 E

co
lo

gy
 re

vi
ew

 c
yc

le
, 

(4
) t

he
 w

or
k 

pl
an

 w
ill 

be
 d

is
tri

bu
te

d 
el

ec
tro

ni
ca

lly
 (e

xc
ep

t f
or

 th
e 

fin
al

 p
ub

lic
 re

vi
ew

 d
ra

ft)
, a

nd
 (5

) t
w

o 
ha

rd
co

pi
es

 o
f 

th
e 

fin
al

 p
ub

lic
 re

vi
ew

 d
ra

ft 
w

ill 
be

 p
re

pa
re

d.
 

40
8

8
10

$5
00

$1
1,

06
4

$5
40

$1
1,

60
4

$1
1,

60
4

Pu
bl

ic
 p

ar
tic

ip
at

io
n 

su
pp

or
t

Th
is

 is
 a

 p
la

ce
ho

ld
er

 s
ub

ta
sk

 to
 p

ro
vi

de
 p

ub
lic

 p
ar

tic
ip

at
io

n 
su

pp
or

t 
to

 th
e 

Po
rt 

as
 n

ec
es

sa
ry

 fo
r s

at
is

fy
in

g 
17

3-
34

0-
43

0(
6)

 a
nd

 W
AC

 1
73

-
34

0-
60

0.

Si
nc

e 
th

e 
sc

op
e 

of
 w

or
k 

fo
r t

hi
s 

su
bt

as
k 

is
 u

nk
no

w
n,

 a
 p

la
ce

ho
ld

er
 b

ud
ge

t o
f $

3,
19

3 
is

 in
cl

ud
ed

.
$3

,1
93

Pr
ep

ar
e 

fin
al

 IA
W

P
R

ev
is

e 
th

e 
IA

W
P 

as
 n

ec
es

sa
ry

 b
as

ed
 o

n 
pu

bl
ic

 re
vi

ew
 c

om
m

en
ts

.
It 

is
 a

ss
um

ed
 (1

) t
he

re
 w

ill 
be

 n
o 

ch
an

ge
s 

to
 th

e 
IA

W
P,

 a
nd

 (2
) t

he
 o

nl
y 

su
bt

as
k 

el
em

en
ts

 w
ill 

be
 c

ha
ng

in
g 

th
e 

co
ve

r 
pa

ge
 a

nd
 d

is
tri

bu
tin

g 
th

e 
fin

al
 d

oc
um

en
t e

le
ct

ro
ni

ca
lly

.
2

$3
96

$0
$3

96
$3

96

Ta
bl

e 
1:

 S
O

W
 a

nd
 E

st
im

at
ed

 C
os

ts
 fo

r 5
25

 B
ay

 S
tr

ee
t I

nt
er

im
 A

ct
io

n 
W

or
k 

Pl
an

Ta
sk

Su
bt

as
k 

Pu
rp

os
e 

/ S
O

W
 O

ve
rv

ie
w

K
ey

 A
ss

um
pt

io
ns

Es
tim

at
ed

 C
os

ts

Su
bt

as
k 

To
ta

ls
Su

bt
as

k 
To

ta
l

Su
bt

as
k

Ev
al

ua
tio

n 
of

 
ne

w
ly

 c
ol

le
ct

ed
 

da
ta

, 
ge

ot
ec

hn
ic

al
 

ev
al

ua
tio

n,
 a

nd
 

ot
he

r p
re

-IA
W

P 
ac

tiv
iti

es

IA
W

P,
 E

D
R

, a
nd

 
pl

an
s/

sp
ec

s

Pa
ge

 1
 o

f 2



Pr
in

.
Sr

.
Pr

oj
.

St
af

f
AA

O
D

C
s

$1
98

 
$1

75
 

$1
35

 
$1

18
 

$8
0 

La
bo

r
O

D
C

s
To

ta
l

Ta
bl

e 
1:

 S
O

W
 a

nd
 E

st
im

at
ed

 C
os

ts
 fo

r 5
25

 B
ay

 S
tr

ee
t I

nt
er

im
 A

ct
io

n 
W

or
k 

Pl
an

Ta
sk

Su
bt

as
k 

Pu
rp

os
e 

/ S
O

W
 O

ve
rv

ie
w

K
ey

 A
ss

um
pt

io
ns

Es
tim

at
ed

 C
os

ts

Su
bt

as
k 

To
ta

ls
Su

bt
as

k 
To

ta
l

Su
bt

as
k

Pr
oj

ec
t m

an
ag

em
en

t
M

an
ag

e 
th

e 
SO

W
, b

ud
ge

t, 
an

d 
sc

he
du

le
, a

nd
 re

gu
la

rly
 

co
m

m
un

ic
at

e 
th

e 
st

at
us

 o
f t

he
se

 it
em

s 
w

ith
 th

e 
Po

rt.
  

It 
is

 a
ss

um
ed

 (1
) t

he
 p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 p

er
io

d 
w

ill 
be

 fr
om

 A
pr

il 
20

23
 th

ro
ug

h 
D

ec
em

be
r 2

02
3,

 a
nd

 (2
) t

he
 le

ve
l o

f e
ffo

rt 
in

cl
ud

ed
 in

 th
is

 ta
bl

e 
w

ill 
be

 s
uf

fic
ie

nt
 to

 c
om

pl
et

e 
th

is
 s

ub
ta

sk
.

18
 

27
 

$4
20

$6
,7

50
$4

54
$7

,2
04

$7
,2

04

D
es

ig
n 

m
ee

tin
gs

Fa
ci

lit
at

e 
de

si
gn

 m
ee

tin
gs

 to
 c

ol
la

bo
ra

te
 a

nd
 s

ha
re

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

to
 

m
ax

im
iz

e 
sy

ne
rg

ie
s 

an
d 

ef
fic

ie
nc

ie
s 

fo
r t

he
 d

es
ig

n 
an

d 
IA

W
P.

It 
is

 a
ss

um
ed

 (1
) t

he
 p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 p

er
io

d 
w

ill 
be

 fr
om

 A
pr

il 
20

23
 th

ro
ug

h 
D

ec
em

be
r 2

02
3,

 a
nd

 (2
) t

he
 le

ve
l o

f e
ffo

rt 
in

cl
ud

ed
 in

 th
is

 ta
bl

e 
w

ill 
be

 s
uf

fic
ie

nt
 to

 c
om

pl
et

e 
th

is
 s

ub
ta

sk
.

16
 

16
 

16
 

$7
,8

56
$0

$7
,8

56
$7

,8
56

Po
rt 

co
m

m
un

ic
at

io
n

Fa
ci

lit
at

e 
pe

rio
di

c 
ca

lls
 a

nd
/o

r e
m

ai
l c

om
m

un
ic

at
io

n 
w

ith
 th

e 
Po

rt 
Pr

oj
ec

t M
an

ag
er

 a
s 

ne
ce

ss
ar

y 
to

 d
is

cu
ss

 p
ro

je
ct

 s
tra

te
gy

, c
ur

re
nt

 
st

at
us

, P
or

t d
ire

ct
io

n,
 ta

sk
 p

rio
rit

iz
at

io
n,

 in
ve

st
ig

at
io

n 
re

su
lts

, 
re

co
m

m
en

de
d 

pa
th

 fo
rw

ar
d,

 e
t c

et
er

a.
 

It 
is

 a
ss

um
ed

 (1
) t

he
 p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 p

er
io

d 
w

ill 
be

 fr
om

 A
pr

il 
20

23
 th

ro
ug

h 
D

ec
em

be
r 2

02
3,

 (2
) p

re
pa

ra
tio

n 
an

d 
fo

llo
w

-
up

 w
or

k 
w

ill 
be

 n
ee

de
d 

fo
r e

ac
h 

ca
ll,

 a
nd

 (3
) t

he
 le

ve
l o

f e
ffo

rt 
in

cl
ud

ed
 in

 th
is

 ta
bl

e 
w

ill 
be

 s
uf

fic
ie

nt
 to

 c
om

pl
et

e 
th

is
 

su
bt

as
k.

18
 

9 
$5

,1
39

$0
$5

,1
39

$5
,1

39

Pr
oj

ec
t s

ta
tu

s 
re

po
rt 

an
d 

pr
el

im
in

ar
y 

IA
 c

os
t 

es
tim

at
e 

Pr
ep

ar
e 

a 
br

ie
f p

ro
je

ct
 s

ta
tu

s 
re

po
rt 

an
d 

pr
el

im
in

ar
y 

co
st

 e
st

im
at

e 
fo

r 
th

e 
IA

 in
 J

un
e 

20
23

 to
 s

up
po

rt 
Po

rt 
C

om
m

is
si

on
 d

ec
is

io
n-

m
ak

in
g 

re
ga

rd
in

g 
th

e 
20

24
 b

ud
ge

t. 

It 
is

 a
ss

um
ed

 th
e 

le
ve

l o
f e

ffo
rt 

in
cl

ud
ed

 in
 th

is
 ta

bl
e 

w
ill 

be
 s

uf
fic

ie
nt

 to
 c

om
pl

et
e 

th
is

 s
ub

ta
sk

.
10

 
2 

$2
,3

30
$0

$2
,3

30
$2

,3
30

Sc
op

e 
ne

xt
 p

ha
se

s 
of

 
w

or
k

Pr
ep

ar
e 

a 
sc

op
e 

of
 w

or
k 

an
d 

co
st

 e
st

im
at

e 
fo

r P
IO

N
EE

R
 c

os
ts

 
re

ga
rd

in
g 

IA
 p

ro
cu

re
m

en
t s

up
po

rt,
 IA

 p
er

m
itt

in
g 

su
pp

or
t, 

an
d/

or
 IA

 
im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n.

 

It 
is

 a
ss

um
ed

 th
e 

le
ve

l o
f e

ffo
rt 

in
cl

ud
ed

 in
 th

is
 ta

bl
e 

w
ill 

be
 s

uf
fic

ie
nt

 to
 c

om
pl

et
e 

th
is

 s
ub

ta
sk

.
6 

2 
$1

,5
38

$0
$1

,5
38

$1
,5

38

Pu
rs

ue
 a

dd
iti

on
al

 
gr

an
ts

/lo
an

s
C

oo
rd

in
at

e 
w

ith
 p

ot
en

tia
l f

un
di

ng
 a

ge
nc

ie
s 

(e
.g

., 
W

SD
O

C
, E

co
lo

gy
, 

an
d/

or
 U

SE
PA

) i
n 

ho
pe

s 
of

 s
ec

ur
in

g 
an

 a
dd

iti
on

al
 g

ra
nt

/lo
an

 fo
r I

A 
im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n.

 

It 
is

 a
ss

um
ed

 th
e 

le
ve

l o
f e

ffo
rt 

in
cl

ud
ed

 in
 th

is
 ta

bl
e 

w
ill 

be
 s

uf
fic

ie
nt

 to
 c

om
pl

et
e 

th
is

 s
ub

ta
sk

. 
16

 
$2

,8
00

$0
$2

,8
00

$2
,8

00

G
R

AN
D

 T
O

TA
LS

22
4

14
1

4
28

5
10

$2
1,

12
0

$1
03

,9
97

$2
2,

81
0

$1
26

,8
07

$1
30

,0
00

N
ot

es
:

Al
l w

or
k 

w
ill 

be
 b

ille
d 

on
 a

 ti
m

e 
an

d 
m

at
er

ia
ls

 b
as

is
.  

O
D

C
s 

(e
.g

., 
pr

oj
ec

t s
up

pl
ie

s,
 s

ub
co

nt
ra

ct
or

) w
ill 

be
 b

ille
d 

at
 c

os
t p

lu
s 

8%
 in

 a
cc

or
da

nc
e 

w
ith

 th
e 

C
on

su
lta

nt
 A

gr
ee

m
en

t.
Ve

hi
cl

e 
m

ile
ag

e 
w

ill 
be

 c
ha

rg
ed

 a
t t

he
 c

ur
re

nt
 In

te
rn

al
 R

ev
en

ue
 S

er
vi

ce
 m

ile
ag

e 
ra

te
 (c

ur
re

nt
ly

 $
0.

65
5/

m
ile

) i
n 

ac
co

rd
an

ce
 w

ith
 th

e 
C

on
su

lta
nt

 A
gr

ee
m

en
t.

AR
AR

: a
pp

lic
ab

le
, r

el
ev

an
t a

nd
 a

pp
ro

pr
ia

te
 re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
; B

TE
X:

 b
en

ze
ne

, t
ol

ue
ne

, e
th

yl
be

nz
en

e,
 a

nd
 x

yl
en

es
; E

co
lo

gy
: W

as
hi

ng
to

n 
St

at
e 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t o

f E
co

lo
gy

; E
D

R
: e

ng
in

ee
rin

g 
de

si
gn

 re
po

rt;
 H

AS
P:

 h
ea

lth
 a

nd
 s

af
et

y 
pl

an
; I

A:
 in

te
rim

 a
ct

io
n;

 IA
W

P:
 in

te
rim

 a
ct

io
n 

w
or

k 
pl

an
; I

D
W

: i
nv

es
tig

at
io

n-
de

riv
ed

 w
as

te
; M

W
: m

on
ito

rin
g 

w
el

l; 
O

D
C

s:
 o

th
er

 d
ire

ct
 c

os
ts

; Q
AP

P:
 q

ua
lit

y 
as

su
ra

nc
e 

pr
oj

ec
t p

la
n;

 s
pe

cs
: s

pe
ci

fic
at

io
ns

; S
AP

: s
am

pl
in

g 
an

d 
an

al
ys

is
 p

la
n;

 T
PH

-G
: t

ot
al

 p
et

ro
le

um
 h

yd
ro

ca
rb

on
s 

in
 th

e 
ga

so
lin

e 
ra

ng
e;

 U
ST

: u
nd

er
gr

ou
nd

 s
to

ra
ge

 ta
nk

; W
AC

: W
as

hi
ng

to
n 

Ad
m

in
is

tra
tiv

e 
C

od
e

Pr
oj

ec
t 

m
an

ag
em

en
t, 

m
ee

tin
gs

, a
nd

 
co

m
m

un
ic

at
io

n

Pa
ge

 2
 o

f 2



Mud Bay Geotechnical Services, LLC• 1001 Cooper Pt Rd SW Ste 140 PMB#108 • Olympia, WA 98502 
360-481-9784 • cheathman@mudbaygeotech.com

February , 2023

RE: 525 Bay St 
Port Orchard, WA
Proposal for Geotechnical Services

Dear Mr. Joel Hecker,

Per your request, Mud Bay Geotechnical Services, LLC is providing this proposal for the
geotechnical design of temporary shoring at the subject address.

The
purpose of the temporary shoring will be to facilitate the removal of an underground storage
tank (UST).  

Scope of Work 

Based on our understanding of the geotechnical effort required to complete the requested work, 
we propose a minimum scope as follows:

Provide project management services, including monthly budget tracking and progress
reports, project closeout, and miscellaneous consultation.

Review environmental boring/monitoring well logs provided by PIONEER.

Review soil and geology maps, topography, LiDAR, and other online information readily
available.

Visit the site to observe existing conditions and drill rig access for the field exploration.

Notify the Washington Utilities Coordinating Council’s “One Call” locating service for
public utility clearance. Subcontract a private utility-locating service to locate utilities
outside of public easements.

Retain a drilling subcontractor to complete a single drilled boring to a maximum depth of
25 feet. The boring will be completed using a track- or truck-mounted drill rig using



Mud Bay Geotechnical Services, LLC• 1001 Cooper Pt Rd SW Ste 140 PMB#108 • Olympia, WA 98502 
360-481-9784 • cheathman@mudbaygeotech.com

hollow stem auger drilling methods. Soil samples will be obtained from the boring at 2½-
or 5-ft depth intervals. using the Standard Penetration Test procedure. Upon completion 
of drilling and sampling, the borehole will be decommissioned in accordance with 
Washington Administrative Code 173-160. Soil cuttings from the boring will be placed in 
drums, labelled, and left at the site for disposal by PIONEER. Pavement will be patched 
using quick-setting concrete.

Provide a geologist to oversee the drilled boring, retain soil samples, and collect
geotechnical data sufficient to determine the stratigraphy, density, and field classify soil
types encountered. The depth to groundwater, if present, will also be determined at the
time of drilling.

Classify the soil samples retained from the drilling in accordance with ASTM D2488
Visual-Manual procedure for identification and classification of soils based on the Unified
Soil Classification System (USCS). Due to environmental considerations, no samples
will be retained.

Based on the data collected in the drilled boring and classification of soil samples,
develop a final boring log, which will be included in the geotechnical report for the
project.

An assessment of feasible shoring methods.

A discussion of potential impacts shoring methods may have on the 525 Bay Street
building, nearby utilities, and Bay Street (Washington State Department of
Transportation right-of-way).

Assessment of the overall stability of the shoring wall under static conditions.

Recommendations for lateral earth pressures for use in shoring design.

General recommendations for earthwork construction, structural fill placement and
compaction, the depth to groundwater, and the maximum slope inclination for temporary
excavations.

A discussion of feasible constructing dewatering methods.

A report for the proposed shoring design, summarizing the findings of our site
reconnaissance, review of the available mapped information for the site, and the soil and
groundwater conditions at the site based on the subsurface investigation. The
geotechnical recommendations and conclusions will be summarized in a professional
engineer sealed and signed report.



Mud Bay Geotechnical Services, LLC• 1001 Cooper Pt Rd SW Ste 140 PMB#108 • Olympia, WA 98502 
360-481-9784 • cheathman@mudbaygeotech.com

Cost Estimate 

Based on the understanding of the geotechnical scope of services requested, we estimate that 
the effort required for this the project can be completed for total fees not to exceed $ . A
summary of the estimated costs are presented in Table 1 below.  

Table 1: Cost Estimate Summary 

Chris Heathman, PE
Mud Bay Geotechnical Services, LLC

Work Item 
Estimated 

Cost 
Project Management $420 

$
Site Reconnaissance and Field Exploration $1,400 

Drilling Contractor Estimate $2,600 
Review of Available Site Information $560 

Engineering Analysis $700 
Drafting and Report Preparation $1,540 

$ ,
Estimated costs are based on an hourly rate of $140/hr. A deposit in the amount of $ ,000 will
be required prior to the site reconnaissance and field exploration. The remaining balance would 
be collected at the time the report is available.

We look forward to the opportunity to work with you and serve your geotechnical needs on this
project. Please contact me at your earliest convenience if you have any questions or would like
to discuss any of the content of this proposal.  

Sincerely, 



AGENDA SUMMARY 

Agenda Item No: Action Item #3 – Marina Security Services 

Subject: Marina Security Contract  

Exhibits: Contract for Marina Security Services  

Prepared By: James Weaver, Director of Marine Facilities 

Meeting Date: May 23, 2023 

Summary: 
This contract before the Commission is with SAFE Security Inc. to provide nighttime security 
for both the Port Orchard and the Bremerton Marinas, five nights a week.  The review process 
included receipt of proposals from three different firms for the same Port marina security 
services.   

SAFE Security, Inc.  was the lowest provider of the proposed services, with an amount of 
$5,824.00 billed monthly.  The next highest bidders were Phoenix Protective Corp. at 
$9,742.26 monthly and Security Services NW, Inc. at $11,167.00 monthly. The contract 
includes Port dedicated security personnel, patrolling the marina docks, the parking lots, the 
marina park, boat launch, and waterfront boardwalk, responding to medical and other 
emergencies and ensuring public safety for the marina tenants, visitors, and community 
stakeholders.   

The Port Orchard marina and Bremerton marinas combined include more than 550 
permanent moorage slips for local marine vessels ranging in value from a few thousand 
dollars all the way to berthing multi-million-dollar yachts.  Both marinas are positioned on 
the public waterfront for the Cities of Bremerton and Port Orchard and in areas that serve as 
busy public transportation hubs for the region.  Ensuring a safe marine environment is a goal 
of the Port of Bremerton. 

Fiscal Impact: 

The contract is for providing marina security to both Port Orchard and Bremerton, 5 nights a 
week, for $5,824.00 billed monthly, beginning service on June 1, 2023. ($69,888 annually). 

Strategic Purpose: 

This action conforms with the Port’s strategic plan in Goal 2. Operate all Port facilities 
efficiently and cost effectively with a high degree of customer service. 

Recommendation: 
Recommendation is to approve the contract with SAFE Security Inc. 

Motion for Consideration: 
Approve the selection of SAFE Security, Inc. for provision of nightly marina 
security services and authorize the CEO to execute the contract.   



AGREEMENT FOR PERSONAL SERVICES  -1-  

PORT OF BREMERTON
AGREEMENT FOR PERSONAL SERVICES 

(CHAPTER 53.19 RCW) 
 

This AGREEMENT FOR PERSONAL SERVICES (“Agreement”) is made and entered into as of the later 
of the two signature dates below, by and between: 

 
 
 PORT OF BREMERTON     
 Attn: Jim Rothlin 
 8850 SW State Highway 3 
 Bremerton, WA  98312  
      (the “Port”)  
AND 
 SAFE SECURITY 
 Attn:  Christine Scott 
 PO Box 3888 
 Silverdale, WA 98383 
            (“Consultant”) 

Term of Contract:      June 1, 2023 – May 31, 2024 ,  with two renewal options of one (1) year each 

 SCOPE OF WORK:  See attached Exhibit “A” 

 COMPENSATION:  The Consultant shall be compensated on the basis of hours worked and expenses 

incurred by its employees at the rates shown herein: See attached Exhibit “B”. 

 GENERAL PROVISIONS:  Services covered by this Agreement shall be performed in accordance with 

the General Provisions (which are attached hereto and form a part of this Agreement) and any attachments 

or schedules. 

 ENTIRE AGREEMENT:  This Agreement supersedes all prior agreements and understandings and 

may only be changed by written amendment executed by both parties. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement as of the later of the dates 
indicated below. By signing below, each signatory represents that he or she has authority on behalf of his 
or her respective party to enter into this agreement, which shall be binding upon the parties according to 
its terms. 

SAFE SECURITY PORT OF BREMERTON 

 

Signature:    Signature:    

Name/Title:    Name/Title: Jim Rothlin, Chief Executive Officer 

Date:    Date:   



AGREEMENT FOR PERSONAL SERVICES  -2-  

GENERAL PROVISIONS

  In consideration of the mutual covenants and other good and valuable consideration, the 
sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged, the parties hereto agree as follows: 

 

1.  Scope of Work.  The objective of this 
Agreement is the timely preparation, completion 
and/or delivery of the scope of work and/or 
deliverables described in Exhibit “A” issued 
pursuant to and governed by the terms of this 
Agreement. A copy of the Exhibit "A," is attached 
hereto and incorporated herein by this reference. 
Additional tasks and/or Amendments to Exhibit “A” 
shall be attached hereto as Amendments and 
shall be made part of this Agreement upon 
approval as required herein. Any Amendment 
issued by the Port prior to the termination date of 
this Agreement shall be governed by the terms of 
this Agreement until completed even if the 
Amendment work extends beyond the termination 
date of this Agreement. 

1.1 Services covered by this Agreement shall 
be performed in accordance with the provisions 
and any attachments or schedules. Except as may 
be otherwise provided for herein, this Agreement 
may only be amended by the mutual consent of 
both parties hereto, in writing and signed by duly 
authorized representatives of both parties. 

2.  Term of Agreement.  The Consultant shall not 
begin work under the terms of this Agreement until 
the Port has specifically authorized the Consultant 
to do so in writing. The time required for 
completion of all work and, if appropriate under a 
schedule for completion of phases of the work, 
shall be specified. The completion date may be 
modified only upon written agreement of the 
parties hereto. The completion dates for 
Exhibit “A”, may be, but are not required to be, 
extended in the event of a delay caused by Extra 
Work requested by the Port, or if the Consultant’s 
work is delayed by unavoidable circumstances 
beyond the control of the Consultant and which 
the Consultant could not reasonably have 
anticipated. This Agreement may be extended for 
multiple terms at the sole discretion of the Port 
and subject to budget appropriations and 
Commission approval when required; if so 
extended, all of the terms and conditions herein 
shall apply to such extension. 

3.  Compensation and Payment.  The 
Consultant shall be compensated on a retainer 
basis with the exception of travel on behalf of and 
approved in advance by the Port. The Consultant 

shall receive no other payment for materials or 
disbursements unless expressly allowed by 
Exhibit “A”.  

3.1 Consultant shall supply Port with a monthly 
invoice and written documentation, satisfactory to 
Port, for all amounts due under this Agreement, 
including but not limited to project status and a 
narrative progress description of services 
rendered that is acceptable in form to the Port. All 
invoices submitted by Consultant to Port shall 
reference any applicable billing codes provided by 
Port to Consultant. Any applicable taxes shall be 
listed as separate line items on each Consultant 
invoice. All invoices and documentation may be 
reviewed and audited by Port and payment may 
be subject to review or audit. Subject to the 
preceding, payments shall be due net thirty (30) 
days of receipt of such invoice by Port. In no event 
shall the Port be charged interest on payments 
due under this Agreement. If required by Port, 
Consultant shall provide periodic forecasts of its 
total fees and costs incurred to date. With regard 
to time and materials, only the reimbursable 
expenses specifically listed in the attached Exhibit 
"A" will be payable expenses under this 
Agreement. 

 3.2 If Exhibit “A” specifies that the work is to be 
performed is on a fixed fee basis, the Consultant 
shall be paid the amount of the fixed fee as 
consideration for full and satisfactory performance 
of the work regardless of the Consultant’s cost to 
perform the work. The Port shall have sole 
authority for determining when all work has been 
satisfactorily performed by the Consultant. The 
Consultant’s payment for the work shall not 
exceed the specific amount unless authorized in 
writing by the Port, as provided herein. The fixed 
fee amount comprises all of the Consultant’s 
payment for the work and includes without 
limitation all costs of salaries, overhead, non-
salary expenses (including, but not limited to, 
travel, reproductions, telephone, supplies, and 
fees of outside consultants), as well as the 
Consultant's profits. The Consultant’s payment for 
the work shall not exceed the specified amount 
unless first authorized by the Port. 

 3.3 The Consultant shall obtain the prior written 
approval of the Port for any charges for additional 



AGREEMENT FOR PERSONAL SERVICES  -3-  

services by the Consultant, the additional services 
of others retained by Consultant, or the furnishing 
of additional supplies, materials or equipment. The 
Consultant shall not be entitled to compensation 
for any such additional charges incurred in 
violation of this paragraph.  

4.  Payment of Subconsultants.  At the time of 
project completion, the Consultant agrees to 
certify to the Port that all employees (including 
without limitation any union fees and any benefit 
plans), and subconsultants have been paid in full. 
Final payment shall be preconditioned upon 
receipt of such certification by the Port; the Port 
may, in its sole discretion, withhold final payment 
until receipt of such certification. The Consultant 
shall be solely responsible for the performance 
and payment of any and all subconsultants. All 
such subconsultants shall possess all licenses 
and insurance as required by the laws of the State 
of Washington.  

5.  Termination.  This Agreement may be 
terminated by either party upon seven (7) days' 
written notice should one party fail to perform in 
accordance with its terms through no fault of the 
other. In the event the party that fails to perform is 
the Consultant, the determination of "fail to 
perform in accordance with its terms" shall be in 
the sole judgment of the Port. In the event of 
termination, the Consultant shall be compensated 
for satisfactory services performed to the 
termination date by reimbursement of the 
Consultant's actual costs directly related to the 
project plus normal overhead and reasonable 
profit. The Port shall have sole authority for 
determining when all work has been satisfactorily 
performed by the Consultant.  In no case, 
however, shall such reimbursement exceed the 
agreed upon fee as approved and amended by 
the Port. Any work product generated by the 
Consultant prior to such termination shall be the 
sole property of the Port, and the Consultant 
agrees to provide the Port with all such materials. 
If the accumulated payment made to the 
Consultant prior to notice of intent to terminate 
exceeds the total amount that would be due as set 
forth herein above, then no final payment shall be 
due, and the Consultant shall promptly reimburse 
the Port for the excess paid. 

5.1  Further, this Agreement may be terminated 
by the Port at any time for any reason whatsoever, 
at the sole discretion of the Port, with seven (7) 
days' written notice. If the Port terminates for 
convenience, the Port will pay according to the 

payment terms as provided in Paragraph 5, 
above. If, after termination for failure of the 
Consultant to fulfill contractual obligations, it is 
determined that the Consultant has not so failed, 
the termination shall be deemed to have been 
effected for the convenience of the Port.  

 5.2  In addition to the above, the Port reserves 
the right to suspend all or any portion of the work 
and services for Consultant’s default or Port’s 
convenience. If the Consultant’s work is delayed 
for more than thirty (30) calendar days due to 
circumstances for which the Consultant is 
responsible, the Port may find the Consultant in 
default and terminate the Task Order and/or this 
Agreement. 

6.  Deviations from Scope of Work.  The Port 
may at any time issue written directions within the 
general scope of this Agreement. If any such 
direction causes an increase or decrease in the 
cost of this Agreement or otherwise affect any 
other provision of this Agreement, the Consultant 
shall immediately notify the Port and take no 
further action concerning those written directions 
until such time as the parties have executed a 
written change order. No additional work shall be 
performed or charges incurred unless and until the 
Port approves in writing the change order and the 
increased cost thereof. Any work done in violation 
of this paragraph shall be at the sole expense of 
the Consultant. Additionally, the Port reserves the 
right to modify the amount spent for identified 
project tasks within the scope of work, provided 
that the Contract Amount, as may be modified 
under Paragraph 3.3, is not exceeded. 

6.1  The Consultant shall make all revisions 
and changes in the completed work under this 
Agreement as are necessary to correct the 
Consultant’s, and those of its subconsultants 
errors or omissions, without additional 
compensation from Port.  

7.  Insurance.  Consultant, if requested, shall 
provide the Port with evidence that Consultant has 
obtained and is maintaining the insurance listed as 
follows: 

7.1 Workers' Compensation Insurance as 
required by law. 

7.2 Employers' Liability Insurance (bodily 
injuries) with a limit of One Hundred Thousand 
Dollars ($100,000) per occurrence with an 
insurance company authorized to write such 
insurance in all states where the Consultant will 



AGREEMENT FOR PERSONAL SERVICES  -4-  

have employees located in the performance of its 
work covering its common law liability to such 
employees. 

7.3  Commercial General Liability Insurance
with limits of One Million Dollar ($1,000,000 per 
occurrence and Two Million Dollar ($2,000,000) 
aggregate and Automobile Liability Insurance 
covering all owned and non-owned automobiles or 
vehicles used by or on behalf of Consultant with a 
One Million Dollar ($1,000,000) combined single 
limit for bodily injury and/or property damage per 
occurrence. 

7.4 Each of the policies required herein, except 
for Workers’ Compensation Insurance, shall 
endorse the Port as an additional insured. 
Furthermore, each policy of insurance required 
herein shall (i) be written as a primary policy; (ii) 
expressly provide that such insurance may not be 
materially changed, amended or canceled with 
respect to the Port except upon forty-five (45) 
days’ prior written notice from the insurance 
company to the Port; (iii) contain an express 
waiver of any right of subrogation by the insurance 
company against the Port and its elected officials, 
employees, or agents; (iv) expressly provide that 
the defense and indemnification of the Port as an 
“additional insured” will not be effected by any act 
or omission by Consultant which might otherwise 
result in a forfeiture of said insurance; (v) contain 
a separation of insureds provision such that the 
policy applies separately to each insured that is 
subject of a claim or suit; (vi) not contain a cross-
claim, cross-suit, or other exclusion that eliminates 
coverage by one insured against another; and (vii) 
provide for coverage for damage to the Port’s 
property caused by the Consultant. 

 7.5 The Consultant shall furnish the Port with 
copies of Certificates of Insurance evidencing 
policies of insurance required herein. The 
Consultant shall maintain these policies as 
identified above for itself and its subconsultants for 
the term of this Agreement and for a period of one 
year thereafter. The Port’s failure to request such 
certificates shall not relieve the Consultant of the 
obligation to provide them.   

7.6 The Consultant shall maintain the 
insurance in effect at all times that it is performing 
work under this Agreement. Failure to obtain 
and/or maintain such insurance shall be grounds 
for the Port to find the Consultant in default and 
terminate the Agreement accordingly. 
Alternatively, the Port may at its option purchase 

such insurance and deduct the reasonable 
expense therefore from payments made to or 
owing to the Consultant. 

8.  Consultant Not an Agent or Employee of the 
Port.  In performing work and services hereunder, 
the Consultant and Consultant's employees, 
agents, and representatives shall be acting as 
independent Consultants and shall not be deemed 
or construed to be partners, employees or agents 
of the Port in any manner whatsoever. No 
employee of the Consultant shall be considered 
an employee of the Port even while performing 
work required under this Agreement. Furthermore, 
the Consultant shall not hold itself out as, nor 
claim to be, an officer or employee of the Port by 
reason hereof and will not make any claim, 
demand or application to or for any right or 
privilege applicable to an officer or employee of 
the Port.  

9.  Conflict of Interest.  Consultant covenants 
that it presently has no interest and shall not 
acquire an interest, directly or indirectly, which 
would conflict in any manner or degree with its 
performance under this Agreement. Consultant 
further covenants that in the performance of this 
Agreement, no person having such interest shall 
be employed by it or any of its subconsultants. 

10.  Compliance with Applicable Law.  The 
Consultant shall comply with all the Port’s 
resolutions and all federal, state, and local laws, 
regulations and ordinances that are applicable to 
the work performed pursuant to this Agreement. 
Both parties mutually agree to re-negotiate scope, 
budget, and schedule should a change in any of 
the applicable Port’s resolutions, federal, state or 
local laws, regulations or ordinances during the 
performance of the work affect the cost of 
performing the work. The Consultant shall register 
(and shall require the same of all subconsultants), 
as required by RCW 23B.15.010, to do business 
in the State of Washington and provide proof of 
the same to the Port. By executing this 
Agreement, Consultant further certifies that neither 
it nor its principals is presently debarred, 
suspended, proposed for debarment, or declared 
ineligible or voluntarily excluded from participation 
in this transaction by any federal department or 
agency. It further agrees by acceptance of this 
Agreement that it will include this clause without 
modification in all lower tier transactions, 
solicitations, proposals, agreements, contracts, 
and subcontracts. Where the offeror/consultant or 
any lower tier participant is unable to certify to this 



AGREEMENT FOR PERSONAL SERVICES  -5-  

statement it shall attach an explanation to this 
Agreement. The Port reserves the right to require 
Consultant to replace a subconsultant or lower tier 
participant who cannot meet the foregoing 
certification requirement. 

11.  Indemnification.  The Consultant shall 
defend (with legal counsel satisfactory to the Port), 
indemnify and hold the Port, its elected officials, 
agents and employees (collectively “Port”) 
harmless from and against all liabilities, 
obligations, fines, claims, damages, penalties, 
lawsuits, governmental proceedings, judgments, 
costs and expenses (including, without limitation, 
all attorneys’ fees, costs and expenses of 
litigation): 

Arising out of any negligent act or omission of 
Consultant, its directors, officers, 
subconsultants, agents and/or employees 
(collectively “Consultant”) in connection with 
the services provided pursuant to this 
Agreement; provided, however, that in the 
event of concurrent negligence of the 
Consultant and the Port, then this defense and 
indemnification shall apply only to the extent of 
the Consultant’s negligence; and/or 

 Arising from a breach of this Agreement by 
Consultant; and/or 

 Arising out of or due to any failure on the part 
of Consultant to perform or comply with any 
rule, ordinance or law to be kept and 
performed.  

The Port will inform Consultant of any such claim 
or demand that alleges liability based in whole or 
in part on any act or omission of Consultant, its 
directors, officers, agents, or employees. 
Thereafter the Consultant shall (i) reasonably 
cooperate in the defense of such claim and (ii) pay 
its defense of such claim as incurred, whether or 
not such claim is ultimately successful. In this 
regard, the Port will reasonably cooperate with 
Consultant in allowing Consultant to jointly select, 
with the Port, attorneys to defend the Port and 
Consultant provided that Consultant confirms its 
obligation to pay the Port’s defense costs. 

 11.1  In the event of concurrent negligence by 
the Port and Consultant, then at the conclusion of 
the action (e.g., judgment, arbitration award or 
settlement), the attorneys’ fees and costs incurred 
in defending the Port shall be apportioned to the 
parties based on their respective fault as provided 
by RCW 4.24.115.  

11.2  The foregoing indemnification obligation 

shall include, but is not limited to, all claims against 
the Port by an employee or former employee of the 
Consultant or any subconsultant or service 
provider. For this purpose, the Consultant 
expressly waives, as respects the Port only, all 
immunity and limitation on liability under any 
industrial insurance Act, including Title 51 RCW, or 
other workers compensation act, disability act, or 
other employees benefits of any act of any 
jurisdiction which would otherwise be applicable in 
the case of such a claim. BY INITIALING BELOW 
THE PORT AND CONSULTANT CERTIFY THE 
WAIVER OF IMMUNITY SPECIFIED BY THIS 
PROVISION WAS MUTUALLY NEGOTIATED. 

__________________________ 
Consultant 

__________________________ 
Port  

 

12.  Work Product Confidentiality.  Any reports, 
documents, questionnaires, records, information 
or data given to or prepared or assembled under 
this Agreement which the Port requests to be kept 
confidential shall not be made available by the 
Consultant to any individual or organization 
without prior written approval of the Port except as 
may be ordered by a court of competent 
jurisdiction. The provisions of this section shall 
survive the expiration or earlier termination of this 
Agreement. No reports, records, questionnaires, 
or software programs provided by the Port or other 
documents produced in whole or in part by the 
Consultant under this Agreement shall be the 
subject of an application for copyright by or on 
behalf of the Consultant. 

13.  Public Disclosure Request. 
Correspondence, reports, and other written work 
product will be generated during the course of the 
relationship created by this Agreement, and third 
parties may request such information pursuant to 
the Washington State Public Disclosure Act (RCW 
42.17.250 et. seq.). The parties agree that in the 
event that such a request is filed, the party with 
whom the request is filed will promptly notify all 
other parties to this Agreement. The parties further 
agree that they will not disclose any such 
requested material until at least ten (10) business 
days after providing notification to all other parties 
to this Agreement. The intent of this clause is to 
provide all parties the opportunity to seek 
injunctive relief pursuant to RCW 42.17.330 so as 



AGREEMENT FOR PERSONAL SERVICES  -6-  

to protect the vital functions of those entities. This 
clause shall survive the termination or expiration 
of this Agreement. 

14.  Plans, etc. Property of Port.  All work 
performed under this Agreement is work for hire. 
All deliverables, including but not limited to original 
plans, drawings and specifications, prepared by 
the Consultant and any and all sub-consultants for 
the Port and funded by the Port are and shall 
remain the property of the Port whether or not the 
Project for which they are made is executed. This 
shall not apply to proprietary software or 
documentation that may be provided to the Port 
and that was developed independent of funding by 
the Port. The Consultant assumes no liability for 
any use of the Drawings and Specifications other 
than that originally intended for this Project. 
Originals, including electronic forms of the data 
prepared by the Consultant and funded by the 
Port, shall become the property of the Port. No 
reports, records, questionnaires, software 
programs provided by Port or other documents 
produced in whole or in part by the Consultant 
under this Agreement shall be the subject of an 
application for copyright by or on behalf of the 
Consultant. When Consultant’s work results in the 
preparation of plans and specifications for bidding 
purposes, the Port will provide the Consultant with 
five (5) completed sets of bid documents. 
Additional sets will be the responsibility of the 
Consultant. The Consultant’s work shall not 
infringe on any copyright, patent, trade secret, or 
other proprietary rights held by any third party. 

15.  Electronic File Compatibility.  All 
electronically transmitted output must be 
compatible with existing Port software, and shall 
be provided to the Port in a PDF or other 
appropriate electronic format. Consultants shall 
check with the Port for software application, 
system compatibility and preferred file type.  

16.  Non-Discrimination.  In connection with the 
performance of this Agreement, the Consultant 
shall not discriminate against any employee or 
applicant for employment because of race, color, 
religion, sex, national origin, age, marital status, or 
being handicapped, a disadvantaged person, or a 
disabled or Vietnam era veteran or a member of 
any other protected class. The Consultant shall 
take affirmative action to ensure that applicants 
are employed, and the employees are treated 
during employment without regard to their race, 
color, religion, sex, national origin, age, marital 
status, or being a handicapped or disadvantaged 

person or a disabled or Vietnam-era veteran or a 
member of any other protected class. 

17.  Federal Restrictions on Lobbying. 
Consultant certifies that under the requirements of 
Lobbying Disclosure Act, 2 U.S.C., Section 1601 
et seq., no Federal appropriated funds have been 
paid or will be paid, by or on behalf of the 
Consultant, to any person for influencing or 
attempting to influence an officer or employee of 
any agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or 
employee of Congress, or an employee of a 
Member of Congress in connection with the 
awarding of any Federal contract, the making of 
any Federal grant, the making of any Federal loan, 
the entering into of any cooperative agreement, 
and the extension, continuation, renewal, 
amendment, or modification of any Federal 
contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement. 

18.  Federal Debarment and Suspension.  The 
Consultant certifies, that neither it nor its 
“principals” (as defined in 49 CFR.29.105 (p) is 
presently debarred, suspended, proposed for 
debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily 
excluded from participation in this transaction by 
any Federal department or agency. 

19.  Subletting or Assigning of Agreement.  
The Consultant shall not sublet or assign any of 
the work covered by this Agreement without the 
express written consent of the Port. 

20.  Notices.  All notices and payments hereunder 
may be delivered or mailed to the addresses listed 
above. If delivered by messenger, courier 
(including overnight air courier) or electronic 
transmittal, they shall be deemed delivered when 
received at the street address or electronic mail 
listed above. All notices and payments mailed, 
whether sent by regular post or by certified or 
registered mail, shall be deemed to have been 
given on the second business day following the 
date of mailing, if properly mailed to the mailing 
addresses provided above, and shall be 
conclusive evidence of the date of mailing. The 
parties may designate new or additional 
addresses for mail or delivery by providing notice 
to the other party as provided in this section. The 
address for delivery of notices and payments are 
as set forth in the introductory paragraph of this 
Agreement. 

21.  Review of Title Documents.  Prior to the 
execution or recordation of any documents 
effecting title to any property, said document shall 
be reviewed by the Port. Consultant shall not 



AGREEMENT FOR PERSONAL SERVICES -7-

execute or record (or make to be executed or 
recorded) any such document prior to the Port’s 
review and approval. 

22. Jurisdiction. This Agreement is made and
delivered in the State of Washington and shall be
construed and enforced in accordance with the
laws thereof. Jurisdiction and venue of any dispute
hereunder shall be solely in the Superior Court of
the State of Washington in and for Kitsap County.
In the event of a dispute arising out of or under
this Agreement, the substantially prevailing party
shall be entitled to its reasonable attorneys’ fees
and costs.

23. Pollution.  Port acknowledges that the
Consultant is not responsible for the creation or
presence of contamination or pollution, if any, at
the property except to the extent that such a
discharge, release or escape is caused by the
negligent act or failure to act of the Consultant.
For the purpose of this clause, contamination
conditions shall mean the actual or alleged
existence, discharge, release or escape of any
irritant, pollutant, contaminant, or hazardous

substance into or upon the atmosphere, land, 
groundwater, or surface water of or near the 
property. The Consultant will promptly notify the 
Port of contamination conditions, if identified. 
Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Port does not 
herein waive any cause of action for damages 
resulting from the Port’s reliance on any 
misrepresentation (made either knowingly or 
negligently) by the Contractor with regard to the 
presence of any contamination or pollution. 

24. Entire Agreement.  This is the entire
agreement between the parties. There is no other
oral or written understanding between the parties
concerning this matter. The Consultant specifically
understands that no Port employees other than
the Project Manager or his/her supervisors are
authorized to direct the work of the Consultant.

25. Signing Authority.  Anyone signing this
Agreement by said signature certifies that he/she
has the authority to execute said document on
behalf of the Consultant and that his/her signature
is binding upon the firm or corporation.



II. SCOPE OF WORK

Scope of Services:

General- The Port desires contractor to provide a nighttime security of certain marina facilities between 
the core hours of 10 PM and 4 AM,  FIVE (5) days a week for a total maximum of 40 hours weekly.  The 
service may occur any five days a week randomly but must include weekends. The security service at 
the following locations: 

Port Orchard Marina 707 Sidney Parkway, Port Orchard, WA.  Security services scope:
• Floating docks, vessels, breakwater, and overwater facilities at the A, B, C, D,

and Guest Float docks, piers, gates, and landings.

Marina Office, Marina Laundry Facility, Tenant Restrooms and Fuel Dock.
Parking Lots at Marina Office (62 spaces) and boat Launch, boat launch parking
(30 spaces), public restroom building located at 533 Bay Street, Port Orchard,
WA.
Port Marina Shop Building, park located at 555 Bay Street, Port Orchard WA
Port Orchard Waterfront public park facility, playground, restroom, & pavilion,
located at 933 Bay Street, Port Orchard WA.

Bremerton Marina inspection scope: 120 Washington Beach Ave., Bremerton WA
• Floating docks, vessels, and overwater facilities at the A, B, C, D, E docks and

breakwater, piers, gates, and marina landings.
• Marina Office, Marina Laundry Facility, and Tenant Restrooms.

The security service will consist of patrol activities to monitor and discourage unauthorized, 
individuals and unauthorized activities by actively patrolling each area with an unarmed, 
uniformed, State Licensed Security Officer. Officer shall spend approximately 4.0 hours per night 
at each of the above-mentioned marina facilities, allowing for driving time, as required, between 
each site. 

Security officers will have successfully passed the state required background investigation
including NCIC and WACIC crime information center checks and fingerprinted, and re
licensed through the State of Washington
Each Officer is neatly uniformed, well-groomed and carries cell phone communication
Each Officer is provided emergency contacts, site map, and all instructions specific to the
Ports of Bremerton and Port Orchard marina operations.

Deliverables: 

Each Officer provides a Daily Log showing all activity for the shift, including areas
checked results and any suggestions as appropriate (such as malfunctioning lighting,
broken gates, etc.)
Each Officer will submit an Incident Report if there is an occurrence of a higher priority
episode such as law enforcement response or fire.

Schedule:
Timeline:  Security Officer will be present five (5) nights per week, including all



weekends and holidays, for the period of 365 consecutive days. 
Contract Term:

The contract terms is for one (1) year with the option to renew for two (2) additional terms
of one (1) year each to be exercised at the Port’s discretion.
If proposer requests a pricing escalation for each renewal term, include the pricing
structure escalation in the proposal.
Upon successful completion of a three-year agreement, the Port and awarded contractor
may negotiate additional renewal options.

Additional Information: 
The Port of Bremerton facilities are recreational marina facilities only and no TSA, US
Customs, or TWIC cards are required for this security proposal.   https://www.tsa.gov/for-
industry/twic
The anticipated shift is 8 hours with 4 hours at each facility.  Prefer core security hours
occur between 10 pm and 4 am.  Anticipate scheduled lunches and time for travel between
facilities.
Parking in Port facilities is available. This contract is this the Port of Bremerton. The City
is not included in this agreement.
Key is available to secure closet for equipment.
Electronic proposals will be accepted. E-mail electronic proposals to
jamesw@portofbremerton.org with cc to ellena@portofbremerton.org. Request a delivery
and read receipt on the e-mail. (Adobe PDF is the preferred format for electronic). If
hardcopy submittal, single staple is sufficient binding.












	2023-05-23_Agenda
	2023-05-09_Minutes
	Action Item 1 - Marina Rates-Tariffs
	May 23 2023 Marina Tariff Action - Agenda Summary
	2023 Port Orchard Marina Tariff
	2023 Bremerton Marina Tariff

	Action Item 2 - Pioneer Technologies CO1
	AGENDA SUMMARY-Action Item  -Pioneer Change Order No 1
	Pioneer Technologies Inc Contract Amendment 1_PTC signed

	Action Item 3 - Marina Security Services Agreement
	Agenda Summary - SAFE Security Marina Security Contract
	2023-05-15_POB Safe Security Agreement




